#### DOCUMENT RESUME

ED 107 561 SO 008 355

AUTHOR Wheeler, James O.

TITLE Bibliography on Geographic Thought, Philosophy, and

Methodology, 1950-1974. Geography Curriculum Project

Occasional Paper No. 3, Revised.

SPONS AGENCY Georgia Univ., Athens. Geography Curriculum

Project.

PUB DATE Feb 75

NOTE 47p.; For earlier version of document, see ED 092

435

AVAILABLE FROM Geography Curriculum Project, University of Georgia,

107 Dudley Hall, Athens, Georgia 30602 (\$1.00

paperbound)

EDRS PRICE MF-\$0.76 HC Not Available from EDRS. PLUS POSTAGE

DESCRIPTORS \*Bibliographies; Comparative Education; Curriculum

Development; Geographic Concepts; \*Geography;

Geography Instruction; Methods; Philosophy; \*Social

Sciences: \*Trend Analysis

IDENTIFIERS \*Geography Curriculum Project

#### ABSTRACT

This bibliography complements an earlier "Bibliography for Geographic Education," ED 092 435. The purpose of the bibliography is to provide a guide to the essential philosophical and methodologic literature in English treating the discipline of geography between 1950 and 1974. A useful reference for educators, students, curriculum developers, and professional geographers, the bibliography begins with an introduction in which the compiler gives a succinct overview of recent trends in geography. The bibliography cites books and articles separately, which are further categorized into nine sections: (1) Bibliographical; (2) Geography and Other Disciplines; (3) Geography in Various Countries; (4) Methodology in Geography; (5) Philosophy of Geography; (6) Professional Training: (7) Quantitative Geography; (8) Subdisciplines of Geography; and (9) Theoretical Approaches. The arrangement with the categories is alphabetical by author. An addendum of recent books not found in the earlier edition concludes the document. (Author/JR)

US OPPARTMENT OF HEALTH
EOUCATION & WELFARE
NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF
EOUCATION
THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN REPRO
DUCEO EXACTLY AS RECEIVED FROM
ATING IT POINTS OF VIEW OR OPINIONS
STATEO ON ONTO NECESSARILY REPRE
SENT OFFICIAL NAT ONAL INSTITUTE OF
EOUCATION POSITION OR POLICY

# BIBLIOGRAPHY ON GEOGRAPHIC THOUGHT, PHILOSOPHY, AND

METHODOLOGY, 1950-1974

James O. Wheeler

University of Georgia

PERM 35 ON THE REPRUDITE THAT TOPYR ONTE MATERIAL BY MICRO-FICHEONLY HA BEEN GRANTED BY

TO ERY AND THIS AN ZATIONS OPERATION. NUERA REEMENT WITH THE NATIONAL NOT TOTE THE POLATION OF THE REPRIOR TO AN OF THE PROMOTES OF THE PROMOT

Geography Curriculum Project Occasional Paper No. 3 University of Georgia. Athens, Georgia 30602

> Revised: February 1975

BIBLIOGRAPHY ON GEOGRAPHIC THOUGHT, PHILOSOPHY, AND METHODOLOGY, 1950-1974

JAMES O. WHEELER

GEOGRAPHY CURRICULUM PROJECT
University of Georgia, Athens, Georgia
Occasional Paper No. 3, October 1973
Revised, February 1975



#### **FOREWORD**

This "Bibliography on Geographic Thought, Philosophy, and Methodology, 1950-1974" will provide the geographic educator as well as the professional geographer with a useful bibliographic reference. Students in geography will also find this publication particularly helpful in identifying the most recent pertinent literature on geographic thought. The bibliography begins with an "Introduction" in which the compiler gives a succinct overview of recent trends in geographic thought, philosophy, and methodology.

Issues in geographic thought and methodology are not only pertinent to the professional geographer, but are also of concern to the curriculum developer. An example is found in the work of the Geography Curriculum Project, in which a review of the theory of geographical organization led the Project to use a systematic approach to develop geographic units to supplement the dominant area approach found in school texts. Discussion of the nature of geography and its proper focus thus not only illuminates the process of knowledge generation in geography as a research discipline, but also the organization of the knowledge for transmission to elementary learners.

Professor Wheeler's "Bibliography on Geographic Thought" complements an earlier "Bibliography for Geographic Education," Publication No. 2, revised in April 1969. Suggestions or comments concerning the "Bibliography on Geographic Thought" may be addressed to the Project or directly to Dr. James O. Wheeler, Department of Geography, University of Georgia, Athens, Georgia, 30602.

M. J. Rice, Director Georgia Geography Curriculum Project 107 Dudley Hall Athens, Georgia.



# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction
Books
Articles
Biographical
Geography and Other Disciplines
Geography in Various Countries 20
Methodology in Geography
Philosophy of Geography
Professional Training 29
Quantitative Geography
Subdisciplines of Geography
Theoretical Approaches
Addendum
Books
Articles



#### INTRODUCTION

The philosophy of geography, the methodology, and the perspective on geographic thought have undergone remarkable change during the past twenty-five years. While most geographers have been busily writing their geography, experimenting with new ways to look at old problems, and learning new techniques to test geographic concepts and theories, a small but significant number of geographers have been especially concerned with the implications of what geographers were doing, how they were doing it, why they were doing it, and where the field of geography was moving into the future. The contribution of those concerned with the philosophy and methodology of geography has been fundamental both in reporting and commenting on developing trends and in suggesting promising and untrodden paths for geographic pursuit.

The purpose of this bibliography and this brief introduction is to provide a guide to the essential philosophic and methodologic literature in English treating the discipline of geography. Although merely knowing about the field's philosophic outlook and methodologic stance does not make one a geographer, a purely substantive understanding of geography divorced of its philosophy and methodology makes one even less so. To study one without the other is to be able to run on only one leg at a time. And as Goethe said, "All fact is, in itself, theory." Thus whereas it may be possible to separate philosophy and methodology artifically from the field's substantive findings, concepts, and principles, there is an essential unity between what one holds as his philosophy and what he finds as a result of his methodologic investigations. Many researchers in geography may profess little relish for abstract and protracted philosophic discussions; yet in their work-a-day world they will, if carefully examined, make numerous and profound assumptions—based on nothing if not their philosophy—which impinge



directly and unequivocally upon their results, findings, and substantive conclusions.

In 1950, unquestionably the predominant view of the field of geography in the United States had best been summarized and articulated by Richard Hartshorne in his 1939 classic, The Nature of Geography. This wide-ranging treatment of the discipline continued to be the philosophic bible of the majority of American geographers through the 1950's and perhaps even into the 1960's. Hartshorne traced the history of geographic thought and demonstrated the origin and evolution of many philosophic and methodologic view-points commonly held by geographers. It was masterful scholarship and served as a stable cornerstone around which numerous geographic careers were built.

Hartshorne spoke of disciplines as tending to be ideographically or nomothetically oriented. The physical sciences, he observed, are strongly nomothetic. By contrast, geography, like history, is especially concerned with the particularistic. After all, there are no two places on earth exactly identical. How then could a geographer ever hope to discover laws, develop theories, and examine general principles? Most disciplines are defined by the objects they investigate, Hartshorne noted, going as far back as Kant to cite support. However, history integrates data in time, and geography integrates data in space. Geography studies areal differences and is heavily ideographic and therefore different from most disciplines in its search for knowledge. To quote Hartshorne, "no universals need be evolved, other than the general law of geography that all its areas are unique" (p. 468).

With the assurance from the foremost spokesman in the field that geography was exceptional, the discipline drew ever more inward looking and isolated from other disciplines. Methodologically, geography indeed became



exceptional, for example, in that the mathematical and statistical techniques so widely used in the physical and biological sciences, as well as in the social and behavioral sciences, were ignored almost completely by those following the Hartshornian perspective. In the early 1950's, and even later, geography was by and large proudly non-quantitative and anti-theoretical.

Only a very small number of geographers took issue with Hartshorne's traditional view of the field. Edward Ullman in the early 1950's argued that areal differentiation should be a subconcept of spatial interaction and emphasized general relationships among places based on the nature of interaction among them. As an aside, it is interesting to note that Ullman in the early 1940's wrote an article introducing one of the most important geographic theories (central place theory) to an American audience, but he published it in a sociology, not a geography, journal.

It remained for Fred Schaefer at the University of Iowa to launch in 1953 the most frontal attack on the Hartshornian philosophy of geography. Schaefer, trained in Germany, had not grown up in the mold of most American geographers. His only significant published work was one, but it became a rallying point for a whole new and different generation of American geographers. Published in the Annals, Association of American Geographers, just after his untimely death, his article attacked the uniqueness doctrine of geography. Geography, he argued, was not exceptional among academic disciplines. Rather than considering empirical regional geography as the core of the field, Schaefer thought regional geography must become the laboratory side of an essentially theoretical subject. "Science is not so much interested in individual facts as in the patterns they exhibit" (p. 227). In geography, these patterns are those dealing with spatial relations. "Geography . . . must pay attention to the spatial arrangements



of the phenomena in an area and not so much to the phenomena themselves" (p. 228). When searching for uniqueness among places on the earth, one will invariably find uniqueness, but not scientific understanding. Only in searching for scientific regularity can one determine what is "unique" and what is general, for clearly what is unique is unique only in relation to what is general. As for geography being methodologically exceptional, Schaefer replies:

The main difficulty of the uniqueness argument is that . . . it proved too much. Are there really two stones completely alike in all minute details of shape, color and chemical composition? Yet, Galileo's law of falling bodies holds equally for both. Similarly . . . it seems safe to say that no two people would register identical scores on all tests as yet devised. Does it follow that our psychologists have so far discovered not a single law? (p. 238).

Hartshorne never quite recovered from this vigorous and unexpected attack by an obscure German immigrant who, according to William Bunge, wrote "scarcely any" on a university form after the entry "achievements." To compound the insult to Hartshorne, Schaefer had not followed rigorously the precise rules of footnoting, paraphrasing, and quoting---leading Hartshorne first to reply to Schaefer's article merely as a case of sloppy scholarship and secondly to attempt to answer Schaefer's philosophic position. The former proved easier than the latter. The philosophic reply started as an article and several years later emerged as a monograph revealing Hartshorne's changed perspective on geography over the past twenty years. With the increasing emphasis in geography on theory and spatial regularity as opposed to uniqueness, Hartshorne came to substitute the term "areal variation" for "areal differentiation" in his 1959

Perspective on the Nature of Geography. But Hartshorne's perspective has proven to be more focused on the past than toward the future.

Even before 1959, William Garrison and his students at the University of



Washington--and later Northwestern University--had launched the dual revolutions in geography, known as the Theoretical Revolution and the Quantitative Revolution. Geography changed quickly, though not without great strains and stresses, so that by 1963 Ian Burton was able to declare that the quantitative revolution, at least, was over. This was only ten years after Schaefer's article. Acceptance of a theoretical posture by geographers has perhaps been slower, and, as Berry has pointed out, there has been much confusion between fact, theory, and method. As a result of Garrison and the scientific-theoretical-quantitative thrust, geography moved back into the mainstream of the social and natural sciences and took on an outward-looking view toward other disciplines. As a consequence, geography has increasingly become intellectually more prominent over the last several years.

In 1958, Edward A. Ackerman presented a brief but profound discussion entitled <u>Geography as a Fundamental Research Discipline</u>. Without directly attacking Hartshorne, Ackerman nevertheless treated geography in a fundamentally different way than Hartshorne. Ackerman placed the scientific approach at the forefront and suggested increased attention should be given to abstract or theoretical geography; to the greater use of quantification; to the integration of physical, biotic, and cultural areas of geography; and to the concern with spatial processes ("space-adjusting techniques"). While taking something of a middle-road between the traditional Hartshornian methodology and the arguments of Schaefer, Ackerman laid a comfortable philosophic foundation for many geographers during a period of rapid transition.

In August of 1963 a former student of Garrison, Brian Berry, stepped before the annual meeting of the Association of American Geographers in Denver



in a session supposedly devoted to the regional geography of the United States. In his presentation, published in the 1964 issue of the Annals. Association of American Geographers, entitled "Approaches to Regional Analysis: A Synthesis." Berry placed the discussion of geographic methodology within the context of systems theory and indeed synthesized the varied approaches used by geographers into a simplified matrix. Columns represented places on the earth and rows defined characteristics of places. The emphasis one gave in his analysis to the columns (localized associations of data or Hartshorne's "integration of data in place") or to the rows (systematic, spatial analysis) determined, in traditional language, whether the study would be described, respectively, as regional (areal differentiation) or systematic geography. Berry went on to point out that "geographers are, like other scientists, identified not so much by the phenomena they study, as by the integrating concepts and processes they stress" (p. 2). This view was counter to Hartshorne's, and by the early 1960's the czar of methodology in geography had indeed begun to topple.

#### Berry continued:

The geographic point of view is spatial and . . . the integrating concepts and processes of the geographer relate to spatial arrangements and distributions, to spatial integration, to spatial interactions and organization, and to spatial processes. Geography's integrating concepts and processes concern the worldwide ecosystems of which man is the dominant part (pp. 2-3).

What is the difference between regional and systematic geography?

According to Berry (p. 9):

If the object of systematic geography is to find those fundamental patterns and associations characterizing a limited range of functionally interrelated variables over a mide range of places, the object of regional geography is to find the essential characteristic of a particular region—its regional character based upon the localized associations of variables in place—by examining a wide range of variables over a limited number of places.



Berry was thus able to translate traditional geography into the language of modern scienfific research methodology.

The scientific orientation and the theoretical-deductive approaches to geography were given an added boost by the publication in 1965 of <a href="https://doi.org/10.1001/jhtml.no.1965">The Science of Geography</a>, based on the work of a seven man panel, chaired by Edward A. Ackerman. Summarizing the changes in geography, the report noted (p. 12):

Like some other fields of science, geography until the 1940's did not have balance between the empirical-inductive and the theoretical-deductive approaches, but leaned heavily toward the former. In some degree the imprint of this former predilection is still with the profession. Since the 1940's, however, interest in the theoretical-deductive approach has gained rapidly, as the potentialities of applying topology, geometry, and advanced statistical techniques to geographical problems were comprehended. Interest in the theoretical-deductive is quickening as recognition of the applicability of formal systems analysis spreads, for all geography is concerned with the spatial attributes of systems. The systems concept, indeed, has opened the way toward a flexibility in research that is freeing the field from a past view of the world as a mosaic of regions.

Another panel-written report, edited by Edward J. Taaffe and entitled <u>Geography</u>, appeared in 1970. Again the emphasis was on scientific methodology, quantitative tools, and locational analysis. Geography was viewed "as the study of spatial organization expressed as patterns and processes" (pp. 5-6). Although geography was treated primarily as a social science in the report, the important physical science attributes of the field were also recognized.

Geographic study of the spatial organization of any area necessarily considers man-environment relationships and cultural landscapes. Such study is clearly integrative, and areas may be viewed as complexes of interrelated distributional patterns, lines of movement, and spatial processes, all involving change through time. Recent research emphases in geography also include the use of mathematical and statistical models in describing, analyzing, and understanding varied spatial patterns and processes; and an increasing concern with behavior in space, growing out of studies of the cultural perception and ecological interpretation of environment.



One cannot leave even this brief discussion of recent geographic thought without mentioning David Harvey's <u>Explanation in Geography</u>, published in 1969. The book is "a systematic investigation of the quantitative revolution and its [philosophical and methodological] implications" (preface). Harvey "sought to bring together the positive aspects of traditional geographical thought and the philosophy implied by quantification," the latter leading us "to think theoretically and analytically . . . " (preface). He continued (preface):

There seemed to me to be nothing wrong with the aims and objectives of traditional geography . . ., but as an academic enterprise it had managed somehow or other to hedge itself about with so many inhibiting taboos and restrictions that it could not hope to realise the aims and objectives it had set itself. In particular, geographers were failing, by and large, to take advantage of the fantastic power of the scientific method. And it was the philosophy of the scientific which was implicit in quantification.

One of Harvey's basic arguments and assumptions, although debated by Stephen Gale in his review of the book in <u>Geographical Analysis</u>, is that "the adoption of a methodological position does not entail the adoption of a corresponding philosophical position" (p. 7). All in all, Harvey moved geography still closer to the scientific-analytic method, as he spoke of models, systems analysis, quantitative techniques, probability theory, and the role of theory in explanation in geography.

Edward J. Taaffe's presidential address, "The Spatial View in Context," published in the <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, 1974, is one of the most useful articles in placing geographic philosophy into a meaningful perspective. Drawing upon Pattison's four traditions of geograph. Caaffe traced the evolution of the man-land, the area study, and the spatial organization schools. Pattison's fourth tradition, geography as earth science, is viewed by Taaffe as "subsumed in the other three traditions." Taaffe recognized geography



as spatial organization as the dominant view in the field. The spatial view, traceable to the German geographer Ratzel, was also attributed to some of the work of Robert Platt in the 1920's. It remained for Schaefer, Garrison, Berry, and many others to bring the spatial organization view into prominence. Bunge's <a href="Theoretical Geography">Theoretical Geography</a> placed great emphasis upon the geometric approach to geographical analysis, and Peter Haggett provided an excellent synthesis of the rather considerable research completed by the mid-1960's from the spatial point of view. Taaffe saw the area study tradition as drawing inspiration from Hartshorne, while the man-land perspective was traceable to the "California School" of geography, specifically Sauer, and more recently the research of Gilbert White, Robert Kates, and Ian Burton. In summary, Taaffe wrote:

The current U.S. emphasis on geography as spatial organization has evolved over the last fifty years from an early emphasis on man-land relations followed by an emphasis on areal differentiation. The spatial view has shown both strengths and weaknesses during the sixties. It has led to more cumulative generalizations and increased cooperation with other social sciences, but has also been felt by some to have been associated with an overemphasis on sterile geometrics and an apparent neglect of pressing social questions. For the seventies it is hoped that geographic research can maintain a reasonable balance between activism and scientism by stressing those emerging generalizations which promise to have the greatest ultimate impact upon society. The spatial view should be more closely articulated to a revitalized man-land view and to the complementary but relatively neglected area study view.

In conclusion, the literature dealing with the philosophy and methodology of geography is extensive. Many different perspectives emerge as different geographers peruse that literature. This brief overview has attempted to provide one perspective by highlighting the contributions of a few of the major writings since 1950. Very assuredly, the trend during this period has been in favor of the spatial school, with its emphasis on the scientific approach, on quantitative methods,



and on theoretical and conceptual views. With the concern of geography in recent years to provide solutions to social and environmental problems, for example, the spatial organization school has proven the most prepared to make contributions in this direction. Thus the solutions to specific societal problems are best achieved from a base of concepts and theories.

The rather fundamental changes that have occurred in geography in the last generation have a direct impact on how geography is taught at all levels of instruction, from graduate schools to elementary classrooms. During the era of the traditional Hartshornian philosophy with the emphasis placed on "areal differentiation" (1939), and later modified to the more neutral "areal variation" (1959), all too typically the student was expected to memorize long lists of place names. Knowing capitals, highest mountains, longest rivers, or principal products became the primary focus of what was thought to be "geography," a perspective stemming from the view that geographers concerned themselves with unique, peculiar, or exceptional information about places. The regional approach consisted essentially of an inventory or encyclopedic listing of "facts" without an attempt to integrate and associate these facts.

With the infusion of the scientific-analytic methods in modern geography, the geographic educator has now a tremendous and exciting opportunity to treat geography systematically by examining spatial principles and concepts. This modern approach permits the student to gain a better understanding of spatial relationships among places, his own perceptions of places, and even his own behavior in space. Thus, the implications of the changed geographic philosophy are profound for the geographic educator.

The bibliography that follows represents a large and varied group of articles and books. It is hoped that these will be of continuing interest



to geographers and that this form will make them better known and more accessible. No claim for completeness is made, as what qualifies for inclusions in such a subject area may be debated. However, it has been the intention to cite the essential literature. Omissions or corrections should be called to my attention.

The bibliography is divided into several categories. The two most general are books and articles. No attempt has been made to classify the former by subject or content. However, as a service to the user the articles have been placed into nine categories, with several articles grouped into two or more of these nine divisions.

James O. Wheeler University of Georgia



#### BOOKS

- Ackerman, Edward A., Geography as a <u>Fundamental Research Discipline</u>, University of Chicago Press: Chicago, 1958.
- 2. Ackerman, Edward A., <u>The Science of Geography</u>, Report of the <u>ad hoc</u> Committee on Geography, National Academy of Sciences -- National Research Council, Washington, D. C., 1965.
- 3. Ahmad, N., Muslim Contributions to Geography, Muhammud Ashraf: Lahore, 1947.
- 4. Alber, Ronald, Adams, John S., and Gould, Peter, <u>Spatial Organization</u>:

  <u>Geographer's View of the World</u>, Prentice-Hall: Englewood Cliffs,
  N. J., 1971.
- 5. Baker, J. N. L., The History of Geography, Barnes & Noble: New York, 1963.
- 6. Beazly, C. R., The <u>Dawn of Modern Geography</u>, Vols. 1, 2, & 3, reprinted Ben Franklin: New York, 1967 and 1968.
- 7. Berry, Brian J. L. and Marble, Duane, eds., <u>Spatial Analysis</u>: <u>A</u>

  Reader in <u>Statistical Geography</u>, <u>Prentice-Hall</u>: <u>Englewood Cliffs</u>, <u>N. J., 1968</u>.
- 8. Berry, Brian J. L. and Pitts, Forrest R., eds., <u>Economic Geography</u>, Vol. 46, June 1970, Supplement: "International Geographical Union Commission on Quantitative Methods."
- 9. Board, C., et al., eds., <u>Progress in Geography</u>, Vols. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 & 6, St. Martin's Press: London, 1969, 1971, 1971, 1972, 1973, 1974.
- 10. Broek, J. O. M., Geography: Its Scope and Spirit, Merrill: Columbus, Ohio, 1965.
- 11. Brown, L. A., Map Making: The Art that Became a Science, Little, Brown & Co.: Boston, 1960.
- 12. Browning, C. E., A Bibliography of Dissertations in Geography, 1901-1969, University of North Carolina, Department of Geography, Studies in Geography No. 1: Chapel Hill, N. C., 1970.
- 13. Bunbury, E. H., A <u>History of Ancient Geography</u>, London, 1883: reprinted New York, 1959.
- 14. Bunge, William, Theoretical Geography, Cleerups: Lund, Sweden, 1966.
- 15. Chatterjee, S. P., <u>Progress of Geography in India</u>, 21st International Geographical Congress: Calcutta, 1968.
- 16. Chisholm, Michael, Geography and Economics, Praeger: New York, 1966.



- 17. Chisholm, Michael, Frey, Allan E., and Haggett, Peter. eds., Regional Forecasting, Archon Books: London, 1971.
- 18. Chorley, R. J. Dunn, A. J., and Beckinsale, R. P., A History of the Study of Landforms, or the Development of Geomorphology, Vol. 1, Geomorphology Before Davis, Methuen: London, 1964.
- 19. Chorley, Richard J. and Haggett, Peter, eds., <u>Frontiers in Geographical Teaching</u>, Methuen: London, 1970.
- 20. Chorley, Richard J. and Haggett, Peter, eds., Models in Geography, Methuen: London, 1967.
- 21. Cohen, Saul B., ed., <u>Problems</u> and <u>Trends in American Geography</u>, Basic Books: New York, 1967.
- 22. Cole, J. P. and King, C. A. M., Quantitative Geography, John Wiley, 1969.
- 23. Cooke, R. U. and Johnson, J. H., <u>Trends in Geography</u>: <u>An Introductory Survey</u>, Pergamon Press: London, 1969.
- 24. Crone, G. R., <u>Maps and Their Makers</u>, <u>An Introduction to the History of Cartography</u>, Capricorn Books: New York, 1950.
- 25. Davies, Wayne K., ed., The Conceptual Revolution in Geography, Rowman, 1972.
- 26. Davis, W. M., Geographical Essays, Dover Publications: New York, 1954.
- 27. De Jong, G., Chorological Differentiation as the Fundamental Principle of Geography, Groningen: Netherlands, 1962.
- 28. Dickinson, Robert E., <u>Regional Ecology</u>: A Study of Man's Environment, Wiley: New York, 1971.
- 29. Dickinson, Robert E., <u>The Makers of Modern Geography</u>, Praeger: New York, 1969.
- 30. Dohrs, Fred E. and Sommers, Lawrence M., eds., <u>Introduction to Geography</u>: Selected Readings, Thomas Y. Crowell Co.: New York, 1967.
- 31. Duncan, Otis D., Cuzzort, Roy P., and Duncan, Beverly, <u>Statistical Geography</u>: <u>Problems in Analyzing Areal Data</u>, Free Press: New York, 1961.
- 32. Durrenberger, R. W., <u>Geographical Research</u> and <u>Writing</u>, Thomas Y. Crowell Co.: New York, 1971.
- 33. Fischer, E., et al., A Question of Place, The Development of Geographic Thought, Beatty: Arlington, Virginia, 1969.
- 34. Freeman, T. W., <u>A Hundred Years of Geography</u>, Aldine Publishing Co.: Chicago, 1962.
- 35. Freeman, T. W., The Writing of Geography, Manchester University Press: Manchester, 1971.



- 36. Friis, H. R., ed., The <u>Pacific Basin</u>, A <u>History of its Geographical Exploration</u>, American Geographical Society, Special Publications No. 38, New York, 1967.
- 37. Fuson, R. H., A Geography of Geography, W. C. Brown Co.: Dubuque, Iowa, 1969.
- 38. Garrison, William L., and Marble, Duane F., eds., Quantative Geography:

  Economic and Cultural Topics, Part I, Studies in Geography No. 13,

  Department of Geography, Northwestern University, 1967.
- 39. Garrison, William L., and Marble, Duane F., eds., Quantative Geography:

  Physical and Cartographic Topics, Part II, Studies in Geography No.

  14, Department of Geography, Northwestern University, 1967.
- 40. Greer-Wooten, Bryn, A <u>Bibliography of Statistical Applications in Geography</u>, Technical Paper No. 9, Association of American Geographers, Commission on College Geography, 1972.
- 41. Gregory, S., Statistical Methods and the Geographer, Longmans, 1963, revised, Hamanities: New York, 1971.
- 42. Haggett, Peter, <u>Locational Analysis in Human Geography</u>, St. Martin's Press: New York, 1966.
- 43. Haggett, Peter and Chorley, Richard J., Network Analysis in Geography, St. Martin's Press: New York, 1970.
- 44. Hale, J. R., Age of Exploration, Time Inc.: New York, 1966.
- 45. Hartshorne, Richard, Perspective on the Nature of Geography, Rand McNally: Chicago, 1959.
- 46. Harvey, David, Explanation in Geography, St. Martin's Press, New York, 1969.
- 47. Isard, Walter, Methods of Regional Analysis, M. I. T. Press: Cambridge, Mass., 1960.
- 48. James, Preston E., and Jones, C. F., eds., American Geography: Inventory and Prospect, Syracuse University Press: Syracuse, New York, 1954.
- 49. James, Preston E., All Possible Worlds: A History of Geographical Ideas, Odyssey Press: New York, 1972.
- 50. Kimble, George H. T., Geography in the Middle Ages, Russell and Russell: London, 1938, reprinted Herdsmen, 1972.
- 51. King, Leslie J., Statistical Analysis in Geography, Prentice-Hall: Englewood Cliffs, N. J., 1969.
- 52. Kurath, H., A Word Geography of the Eastern United States, University of Michigan Press: Ann Arbor, Michigan, 1949.



- 53. Leighly, J., ed., <u>Land and Life</u>, <u>A Selection from the Writings of Carl</u>
  Ortwin Sauer, University of California Press: Berkeley, California,
  1963.
- 54. May, J. A., <u>Kant's Concept of Geography and Its Relation to Recent Geographic Thought</u>, University of Toronto Press: Toronto, 1970.
- 55. McConnell, Harold and Yassen, David, eds., <u>Perspectives in Geography I:</u>
  <u>Models of Spatial Variation</u>, Northern Illinois University Press:

  DeKalb, Ill., 1971.
- 56. Minshull, Roger, <u>Regional Geography</u>: <u>Theory and Practice</u>, Aldine: Chicago, 1967.
- 57. Minshull, Roger, The Changing Nature of Geography, Hutchinson: London, 1970.
- 58. Mirsky, J., ed., The Great Chinese Travelers, Pantheon Books: New York, 1964.
- 59. Morison, S. E., trans. and ed., <u>Journals and Other Documents on the Life and Voyages of Christopher Columbus</u>, Heritage Press: New York, 1963.
- 60. Neft, David S., <u>Statistical Analysis for Areal Distributions</u>, Regional Science Research Institute: Philadelphia, 1966.
- 61. Penrose, B., <u>Travel and Discovery in the Rennaissance</u>, <u>1420-1620</u>, Harvard University Press: Cambridge, Mass., 1952.
- 62. Platt, Robert S., <u>Field Study in American Geography</u>, University of Chicago Research Paper, No. 61, Chicago, 1959.
- 63. Quill, H., John Harrison, The Man Who Found Longitude, Pall Mall: London, 1966.
- 64. Rowley, V. M., J. <u>Russell Smith</u>: <u>Geographer</u>, <u>Educator and Conservationist</u>, University of Pennsylvania Press: Philadelphia, 1964.
- 65. Skelton, R. A., ed., <u>History of Cartography</u>, Harvard University Press: Cambridge, Mass., 1964.
- 66. Stamp, L. D., and Wooldridge, S. W., eds., <u>London Essays in Geography</u>, Harvard University Press: Cambridge, <u>Mass.</u>, 1951.
- 67. Sykes, P., A <u>History of Exploration from the Earliest Times to the Present Day</u>, Harper Bros.: New York, 1961.
- 68. Taaffe, Edward J., et al., Geography, Prentice-Hall: Englewood Cliffs, N. J., 1970.
- 69. Taylor, G., ed., <u>Geography in the 20th Century</u>, Philosophical Library: New York, 1957.



- 70. Terra, H. de, The Life and Times of Alexander von Humboldt, Alfred A. Knopf: New York, 1955.
- 71. Theakstone, W. H., and Harrison, C., <u>The Analysis of Geographical Data</u>, Heinemann Educational Books: London, 1970.
- 72. Thomas, William L., ed., Man's Role in Changing the Face of the Earth, University of Chicago Press: Chicago, 1956.
- 73. Thomson, J. O., <u>History of Ancient Geography</u>, Biblo & Tannen: New York, 1965.
- 74. Tidswell, W. V. and Barker, S. M., <u>Quantitative Methods</u>: <u>An Approach to Socio-Economic Geography</u>, University Tutorial Press: <u>London</u>, 1971.
- 75. Tozer, H. F., A <u>History of Ancient Geography</u>, Cambridge University Press: Cambridge, England, reprinted New York: Biblo & Tannen, 1964.
- 76. Wanklyn, H., <u>Friedrich Ratzel</u>, <u>A Biographical Memoir and Bibliography</u>, Cambridge University Press: Cambridge, England, 1961.
- 77. Warntz, William, <u>Geography Now and Then</u>, American Geographical Society Research Series No. 25: New York, 1964.
- 78. Warntz, William and Wolfe, Peter, <u>Breakthroughs in Geography</u>, New American Library: New York, 1971.
- 79. Wooldridge, S. W., and East, W. G., <u>The Spirit and Purpose of Geography</u>, Hutchinson's University Library: London & New York, 1966.
- 80. Wright, John K., <u>Geography in the Making</u>, American Geographical Society: New York, 1952.
- 8]. Wright, John K., <u>Human Nature in Geography</u>, Harvard University Press: Cambridge, Mass., 1966.
- 82. Yeates, Maurice H., An Introduction to Quantitative Analysis in Economic Geography, Prentice-Hall: Englewood Cliffs, N. J., 1968.



#### ARTICLES

# Biographical

- Baulig, Henri, "William Morris Davis: Master of Method," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 40 (1950), pp. 188-195.
- Gade, Daniel W., "The Contributions of O. F. Cook to Cultural Geography," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 22 (1970), pp. 206-209.
- 3. Hartshorne, Richard, "The Concept of Geography as a Science of Space, from Kant and Humboldt to Hettner," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 48 (1958), pp. 97-108.
- 4. Hsieh, Chiao-Min, "Hsia-Ke Hsu--Pioneer of Modern Geography in China,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 48 (1958),

  pp. 73-82.
- 5. Koelsch, William A., "The Historical Geography of Harlan H. Barrows,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 59 (1969),

  pp. 632-651.
- 6. Kriesel, Karl Marcus, "Montesquieu: Possibilistic Political Geographer,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 58 (1968),

  pp. 557-574.
- 7. McKinney, William M., "Carey, Spender and Modern Geography," <u>Professional</u> <u>Geographer</u>, Vol. 20 (1968), pp. 103-106.
- 8. Martin, Lawrence, "William Morris Davis: Investigator, Teacher, and Leader in Geomorphology," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 40 (1950), pp. 172-180.
- 9. Peucker, Thomas K., "Johann Georg Kohl, A Theoretical Geographer of the 19th Century," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 20 (1968), pp. 247-250.
- 10. Sauer, Carl O., "The Formative Years of Ratzel in the United States,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 61 (1971),

  pp. 245-254.
- 11. Spate, O. H. K., "Toynbee and Huntington: A Study in Determinism," Geographical Journal, Vol. 120 (1952), pp. 406-428.
- 12. Stoddart, D. R., "Darwin's Impact on Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 56 (1966), pp. 683-698.
- 13. Thrower, Norman, "Edmond Halley as a Thematic Geo-Cartographer," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 59 (1969), pp. 652-676.



- Trindell, Roger T., "Franz Boas and American Geography," <u>Professional</u> <u>Geographer</u>, Vol. 21 (1969), pp. 328-331.
- 15. Visher, Stephen S., "Notable Contributors to American Geography," Professional Geographer, Vol. 17 (1965), pp. 25-29.
- 16. Visher, Stephen S., "The Presidents and Vice Presidents of the AAG (1904-1948): Where They Received Their College and Graduate Training," Professional Geographer, Vol. 2 (1950), pp. 41-46.

# Geography and Other Disciplines

- 1. Ackerman, Edward A., "Public Policy Issues for the Professional Geographer,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 52 (1962),

  pp. 292-298.
- Alexander, John W., "Geography: As Some Others See It," <u>Professional</u> <u>Geographer</u>, Vol. 11 (1959), pp. 2-5.
- 3. Alpert, Harry, "Geography, Social Science, and the National Science Foundation." Professional Geographer, Vol. 9 (1957), pp. 7-9.
- 4. Aschmann, Homer, "Geography and the Liberal Arts College," <u>Professional</u> Geographer, Vol. 10 (1958), pp. 2-6.
- 5. Brown, Wendell J., "A Lawyer Looks at the Name Geography," Professional Geographer, Vol. 17 (1961), pp. 16-19.
- 6. Buttimer, Anne, "Social Space in Interdisciplinary Perspective," Geographical Review, Vol. 59 (1969), pp. 417-426.
- 7. Clarkson, James D., "Ecology and Spatial Analysis," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 60 (1970), pp. 700-716.
- 8. Cooper, Sherwin H., "Theoretical Geography, Applied Geography and Planning,"
  Professional Geographer, Vol. 18 (1966), pp. 1-2.
- 9. Cowen, Joel B., "The Place of Geography in the Liberal Arts," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 135-136.
- 10. Doerr, Arthur H. and Sieve, Kenneth, "Nonsense Geography--Or Is It?" Journal of Geography, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 169-174.
- 11. Griffin, Donald W., "Some Comments on Urban Planning and the Geographer,"

  <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 17 (1965), pp. 4-6.
- 12. Hurst, Michael E. Eliot, "Geography and the Contemporary Urban Scene,"

  Journal of Geography, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 110-114.
- 13. Inskeep, Edward L., "The Geographer in Planning," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 14 (1962), pp. 22-24.



- 14. McNee, Robert B., "Regional Planning, Bureaucracy and Geography," <u>Economic Geography</u>, Vol. 46 (1970), pp. 190-198.
- 15. McNee, Robert B., "The Structure of Geography and Its Potential Contribution to Generalist Education for Planning," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 18 (1966), pp. 63-68.
- 16. Marchand, Bernard, "Information Theory and Geography," Geographical Analysis, Vol. 4 (1972), pp. 234-257.
- 17. Mason, Peter F. and Kuhn, Michael W., "Geography and Environmental Studies: The Fifth Tradition," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 91-94.
- 18. Matley, Ian, "The Marxist Approach to the Geographical Environment," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 56 (1966), pp. 97-111.
- 19. Mikesell, Marvin W., "Geographic Perspectives in Anthropology," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 57 (1967), pp. 617-634.
- 20. Mitchell, Robert B., "On Paradigms and Paradiddles: A City Planner Looks at Regional Science," <u>Papers of the Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 7 (1961), pp. 7-15.
- 21. Morgan, W. B. and Moss, R. P., "Geography and Ecology: The Concept of the Community and Its Relationship to Environment," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 55 (1965), pp. 339-350.
- 22. Morris, John W., "The Role of the Geographer in Social Surveys," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 2 (1950), pp. 23-27.
- 23. Stolberg, Irving, "Geography and Peace Research," Professional Geographer, Vol. 17 (1965), pp. 9-12.
- 24. Tuan, Yi-Fu, "Geography, Phenomenology, and the Study of Human Nature," Canadian Geographer, Vol. 15 (1971), pp. 181-192.
- 25. Ullman, Edward L., "Human Geography and Area Research," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 43 (1953), pp. 54-66.
- 26. Warntz, William, "Global Science and the Tyranny of Space," Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 19 (1967), pp. 7-19.
- 27. White, Gilbert F., et al., "Critical Issues Concerning Geography in the Public Service," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 52 (1962), pp. 279-298.
- 28. White, Gilbert F., "Geography and Public Policy," <u>Professional Geographer</u> Vol. 24 (1972), pp. 101-104.
- 29. Wilbanks, Thomas J. and Symanski, Richard, "What is Systems Analysis?"

  Professional Geographer, Vol. 20 (1968), pp. 81-85.
- 20. Wilhelm, E. J., "Biogeography and Environmental Science," Professional Geographer, Vol. 20 (1968), pp. 123-125.



- 31. Willatts, E. C., "Planning and Geography in the Last Three Decades,"

  <u>Geographical Journal</u>, Vol. 137 (1971), pp. 311-338.
- 32. Williams, Liewelyn, "Climatology and Geographers," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 13 (1961), pp. 11-15.
- 33. Wright, John K., "Geography and History Cross-Classified," <u>Professional</u> Geographer, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 7-10.
- 34. Zelinsky, Wilbur, "Beyond the Exponentials: The Role of Geography in the Great Transition," Economic Geography, Vol. 46 (1970), pp. 498-535.

## Geography in Various Countries

- 1. Annette, Sister Mary, "French Geography in the Sixties," <u>Professional</u> <u>Geographer</u>, Vol. 20 (1968), pp. 92-97.
- 2. Carol, Hans, "Current Geographic Thought in the German Language Area," <a href="Professional Geographer">Professional Geographer</a>, Vol. 11 (1959), pp. 11-16.
- Crist, Raymond E., "Some Recent Trends in French Geographic Research and Thought," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 26-28.
- 4. Downes, Alan, "The Bibliographic Dinosaurs of Georgian Geography (1714-1830)," Geographical Journal, Vol. 137 (1971), pp. 379-387.
- 5. Gregor, Howard F., "German Vs. American Economic Geography," <u>Professional</u> Geographer, Vol. 9 (1957), pp. 12-14.
- Hajdu, Joseph B., "Toward a Definition of Post-War German Social Geography," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 58 (1968), pp. 397-410.
- 7. Harkema, Roll C., "School Geography in Developing Nations," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 73-72.
- 8. Heathcote, G. E. A., and Heathcote, R. L., "German Geographical Literature on Australia, 1810-1940: A Preliminary Bibliography and Comment,"

  Australian Geographer, Vol. 12 (1972), pp. 154-176.
- 9. Hooson, David J. M., "The Development of Geography in Pre-Soviet Russia,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 58 (1968),

  pp. 250-272.
- Hooson, David J. M., "Methodological Clashes in Moscow," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 52 (1962), pp. 469-475.
- 11. Jones, Clarence F., "Status and Trends of Geography in the United States, 1952-1957," Professional Geographer, Vol. 11, Part 2 (1959), pp. 1-145.



- 12. Kohn, Clyde F., "The 1960's: A Decade of Progress in Geographical Research and Instruction," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 60, (1970), pp. 211-219.
- 13. McDonald, James B., "Publication Trends in a Major French Geographical Journal," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 55 (1965), pp. 125-139.
- 14. Matley, Ian, "The Marxist Approach to the Geographical Environment," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 56 (1966), pp. 97-111.
- 15. Steel, Robert W. and Watson, J. Wreford, "Geography in the United Kingdom 1968-72," Geographical Journal, Vol. 138 (1972), pp. 139-153.
- 16. Sternberg, Hilgard O'Reilly, "Geographic Thought and Development in Brazil," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 11 (1959), pp. 12-17.
- 17. Thoman, Richard S., "Recent Methodological Contributions to German Economic Geography," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 48 (1958), pp. 92-96.
- 18. Thornthwaite, C. W., "American Geographers: A Critical Evaluation," Professional Geographer, Vol. 13 (1961), pp. 10-13.

# Methodology in Geography

- Angel, Shlomo, and Hyman, Geoffrey M., "Transformations and Geographic Theory," Geographical Analysis, Vol. 4 (1972), pp. 350-372.
- 2. Berry, Brian J. L., "Approaches to Regional Analysis: A Synthesis,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 54 (1964),

  pp. 2-12.
- Berry, Brian J. L., "Problems of Data Organization and Analytical Methods in Geography," <u>Journal of the American Statistical Association</u>, Vol. 66 (1971), pp. 510-523.
- 4. Blaut, J. M., and Stea, David, "Studies of Geographic Learning," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 61 (1971), pp. 387-393.
- 5. Borchert, John R., "Remote Sensors and Geographical Science," <u>Professional</u> Geographer, Vol. 20 (1968), pp. 371-375.
- 6. Bunge, William, "The Structure of Contemporary American Geographic Research,"

  Professional Geographer, Vol. 13 (1961), pj. 19-23.
- 7. Burton, Ian, "The Quantitative Revolution and Theoretical Geography," Canadian Geographer, Vol. 7 (1963), pp. 151-162.



- 8. Campbell, Robert D., "Personality as an Element of Regional Geography,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 58 (1968),
  pp. 748-759.
- 9. Chisholm, Michael, "Macro- and Micro-Approaches to Urban Systems Research," Geographical Journal, Vol. 138 (1972), pp. 60-63.
- 10. Chojnicki, Zayszko, "Prediction in Economic Geography," <u>Economic Geography</u>, Vol. 46 (1970), pp. 213-222.
- 11. Chorley, Richard J., "Geography and Analogue Theory," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 54 (1964), pp. 127-137.
- 12. Clarkson, James D., "Ecology and Spatial Analysis," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 60 (1970), pp. 700-716.
- 13. Dziewonski, Kazimierz, "A New Approach to the Theory and Empirical Analysis of Location," <u>Papers of the Regional Science</u> <u>Association</u>, Vol. 16 (1966), pp. 17-26.
- 14. Eichenbaum, Jack and Gale, Stephen, "Form, Function, and Process: A Methodological Inquiry," <u>Economic Geography</u>, Vol. 47 (1971), pp. 525-544.
- 15. Gale, Stephen, "Inexactness, Fuzzy Sets, and the Foundations of Behavioral Geography," Geographical Analysis, Vol. 4 (1972), pp. 337-349.
- 16. Gale, Stephen, "On the Heterodoxy of Explanations: A Review of David Harvey's Explanation in Geography," Geographical Analysis, Vol. 4 (1972), pp. 285-322.
- 17. Golledge, R. G., Brown, L. A., and Williamson, Frank, "Behavioural Approaches in Geographer: An Overview," <u>Australian Geographer</u>, Vol. 12 (1972), pp. 59-79.
- 18. Golledge, R. G. and Amadeo, Douglas, "On Laws in Geography." Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 58 (1968), pp. 760-774.
- 19. Golledge, R. G. and Amadeo, Douglas, "Some Introductory Notes on Regional Division and Set Theory," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 18 (1966), pp. 14-19.
- 20. Grigg, David, "The Logic of Regional Systems," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 55 (1965), pp. 465-491.
- 21. Guelke, Leonard, "Problems of Scientific Explanation in Geography," <u>Canadian</u> <u>Geographer</u>, Vol. 15 (1971), pp. 38-53.
- 22. Hartshorne, Richard, "The Functional Approach in Political Geography,"

  <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 40 (1950),
  pp. 95-130.
- 23. Isard, Walter, "Some Notes on the Linkage of Ecologic and Economic Systems,"

  Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 22 (1969), pp. 85-96.



- 24. Jones, Emrys, "Cause and Effect in Human Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 46 (1956), pp. 369-377.
- 25. Jones, Stephen B., "A Unified Field Theory of Political Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 43 (1953), pp. 111-123.
- 26. Knight, C. Gregory, "Ethnogeography and Change," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 47-51.
- 27. Kalesnik, S. Y., "General Geographic Regularities of the Earth," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 54 (1964), pp. 160-164.
- 28. Kohn, Clyde F., "The 1960's: A Decade of Progress in Geographical Research and Instruction," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 50 (1970), pp. 211-219.
- 29. Krzysztof, Porwit, "Theoretical and Methodological Questions in the Construction of Comprehensive Models for Regional Planning," <u>Papers of the Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 22 (1969), pp. 203-214.
- 30. Latham, J. P., "Methodology for an Instrumented Geographic Analysis," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 53 (1963), pp. 194-209.
- 31. LaValle, Placido, et al., "Certain Aspects of the Expansion of Quantitative Methodology in American Geography," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 57 (1967), pp. 423-436.
- 32. Lowenthal, David, "Geography, Experience, and Imagination: Towards a Geographical Epistemology," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 51 (1961), pp. 241-260.
- Robinson, Brian S., "A Note on Geographical Description in the Age of Discoveries," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 23 (1971), pp. 208-211.
- 34. Schaefer, Fred K., "Exceptionalism in Geography: A Methodological Examination," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 43 (1953), pp. 226-249.
- 35. Stone, Kirk H., "A Geographer's Strength: The Multiple-Scale Approach,"

  Journal of Geography, Vol. 71 (1972), pp. 354-362.
- Taylor, Peter J., "The Location Variable in Taxonomy," <u>Geographical Analysis</u>, Vol. 1 (1969), pp. 181-195.
- 37. Zelinsky, Wilbur, "Beyond the Exponentials: The Role of Geography in the Great Transition," Economic Geography, Vol. 46 (1970), pp. 498-535.



## Philosophy of Geography

- 1. Ackerman, Edward A., "Where is a Research Frontier?" Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 53 (1963), pp. 429-440.
- 2. Ahnert, Frank, "On the Concept of Areal Differentiation: A Reply," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 14 (1962), pp. 16-18.
- 3. Ahnert, Frank, "Some Reflections on the Place and Nature of Physical Geography," Professional Geographer, Vol. 14 (1962), pp. 1-7.
- 4. Alexander, John W., "Geography: As Some Others See It," <u>Professional</u> <u>Geographer</u>, Vol. 11 (1959), pp. 2-5.
- 5. Berry, Brian J. L., "The Quantitative Bogey-Man," Economic Geography, Vol. 36 (1960), Guest Editorial.
- 6. Berry, Brian J. L., "Approaches to Regional Analysis: A Synthesis,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 54 (1964),

  pp. 2-12.
- 7. Blaut, J. M., "Object and Relationship," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 14 (1962), pp. 1-7.
- 8. Blaut, J. M., "Space and Process," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 13 (1961), pp. 1-7.
- 9. Borchert, John R., "A Statement Favoring Support of the Term Geography,"
  Professional Geographer, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 14-16.
- Brookfield, H. C., "Questions on the Human Frontiers of Geography,"
   Economic Geography, Vol. 40 (1964), pp. 283-303.
- 11. Brown, Wendell J., "A Lawyer Looks at the Name Geography," <u>Professional</u> Geographer, Vol. 17 (1961), pp. 16-19.
- 12. Bunge, William, "The Structure of Contemporary American Geographic Research," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 13 (1961), pp. 19-23.
- 13. Bunge, William, "Theoretical Geography," in <u>Introduction to Geography:</u>
  Selected Readings, Dohrs and Sommers (eds.), New York: Crowell Co.,
  1967.
- 14. Burrill, Meredith, "The Language of Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 58 (1968), pp. 1-11.
- 15. Burton, Ian, "The Quality of the Environment: A Review," Geographical Review, Vol. 58 (1968), pp. 472-481.
- Garol, Hans, "Geography of the Future," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 13 (1961), pp. 14-18.



- 17. Clark, Andrew, "Praemia Geographiae: The Incidential Rewards of a Professional Career," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 52 (1962), pp. 229-241.
- 18. Clark, Andrew, "What Geographers Did: A Review," Economic Geography, Vol. 44 (1968), pp. 83-86.
- 19. Clayton, Keith, "Geographical Reference Systems," Geographical Journal, Vol. 137 (1971), pp. 1-13.
- 20. Crist, Raymond E., "Geography," Professional Geographer, Vol. 21 (1969), pp. 305-307.
- 21. Curry, Leslie, "Quantitative Geography, 1967," <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 11 (1967), pp. 265-279.
- 22. Dodge, Stanley D., "Geography: What to Call It," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 13-14.
- Dodoo, Robert, Jr., "The Use of Speculative Social Thought in Geographical Research," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 23 (1971), pp. 295-297.
- 24. Eichenbaum, Jack and Gale, Stephen, "Form, Function, and Process: A Methodological Inquiry," <u>Economic Geography</u>, Vol. 47 (1971), pp. 525-544.
- 25. Floyd, Barry N., "On Reversing the Image of a Simplistic Geography: The Task of Socio-Economic Geography (Geonomics)," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 84-90.
- 26. Floyd, Barry II., "The Pleasures Ahead: A Geographic Meditation," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 14 (1962), pp. 1-4.
- 27. Floyd, Barry N., "Quantification--A Geographic Deviation?" <u>Professional</u> <u>Geographer</u>, Vol. 15 (1963), pp. 15-17.
- 28. Gale, Stephen, "On the Heterodoxy of Explanations: A Review of David Harvey's Explanation in Geography," Geographical Analysis, Vol. 4 (1972), pp. 285-322.
- 29. Garrison, William L., "Values of Regional Science," <u>Papers of the Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 13 (1964), pp. 7-11.
- 30. Ginsburg, Norton, "The Mission of a Scholary Society," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 24 (1972), pp. 1-6.
- 31. Golledge, R. G. and Amadeo, Douglas, "On Laws in Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 58 (1968), pp. 760-774.
- 32. Grigg, David, "The Logic of Regional Systems," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 55 (1965), pp. 465-491.
- 33. Guelke, Leonard, "Problems of Scientific Explanation in Geography," <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 15 (1971), pp. 38-53.



- 34. Harris, Britton, "Problems in Regional Science," <u>Papers of the Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 21 (1968), pp. 7-18.
- 35. Harris, Cole, "Theory and Synthesis in Historical Geography," <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 15 (1971), pp. 157-172.
- 36. Hartshorne, Richard, "The Concept of Geography as a Science of Space, from Kant and Humboldt to Hettner," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 48 (1958), pp. 97-108.
- 37. Hartshorne, Richard, "Exceptionalism in Geography: Re-Examined," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 45 (1955), pp. 204-244.
- 38. Hartshorne, Richard, "On the Concept of Areal Differentiation," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 14 (1962), pp. 10-12.
- 39. Hoover, Edgar M., "Whence Regional Scientists?" Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 11 (1963), pp. 7-16.
- 40. Hudman, Lloyd E., "Geographic Concepts: A Need to be Explicit," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 71 (1971), pp. 520-525.
- 41. Hunter, John M., "The Structure of Geography: Note on an Introductory Model," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 332-336.
- 42. Isard, Walter and Reiner, Thomas A., "Regional Science and Planning," <u>Papers</u> of the <u>Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 8 (1962), pp. 1-36.
- 43. Isard, Walter and Reiner, Thomas A., "Regional Science: Retrospect and Prospect," Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 16 (1966), pp. 1-16.
- 44. Jackson, W. A. Douglas, "Whither Political Geography?" Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 48 (1958), pp. 178-183.
- 45. James, Preston E., "On the Origin and Persistence of Error in Geography,"

  <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 57 (1967),

  pp. 1-24.
- 46. James, Preston E., "Geography in an Age of Revolution," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 62 (1963), pp. 97-103.
- 47. James, Preston E., "Toward a Further Understanding of the Regional Concept,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 42 (1952), pp. 195-222.
- 48. Jones, Emrys, "Cause and Effect in Human Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 46 (1956), pp. 369-377.
- 49. Jones, Stephen B., "Boundary Concepts in the Setting of Place and Time,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 49 (1959),

  pp. 241-255.
- 50. Kish, George, "Mirror for the American Geographer," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 16 (1964), pp. 1-4.



- 51. Kruczala, Jerzy, "The Attempt to Formulate the Theoretical Base of Regional Science," Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 10 (1963), pp. 47-50.
- 52. Lewis, Peter W., "Three Related Problems in the Formulation of Laws in Geography," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 17 (1965), pp. 24-27.
- 53. Lewthwaite, Gordon, "Environmentalism and Determinism: A Search for Clarification," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 57 (1966), pp. 1-23.
- 54. Lowenthal, David, "Geography, Experience, and Imagination: Towards a Geographical Epistemology," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 51 (1961), pp. 241-260.
- 55. Lowenthal, David, "In Defense of the Name Geography," Professional Geographer, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 11-12.
- 56. Lukermann, Fred, "The Concept of Location in Classical Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 51 (1961), pp. 194-210.
- 57. Lukermann, Fred, "On Explanation, Model and Description," <u>Professional</u> <u>Geographer</u>, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 1-2.
- 58. Lukermann, Fred, "The Role of Theory in Geographical Inquiry," <u>Professional</u> Geographer, Vol. 13 (1961), pp. 1-6.
- 59. MacDonald, James R., "The Region: Its Conception, Designs and Limitations,"

  <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 56 (1966), pp. 516-528.
- 60. Mason, Peter F., and Kuhn, Michael W., "Geography and Environmental Studies: The Fifth Tradition," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 91-94.
- 61. Mather, D. B., "The New Age of Reason in Geography," <u>Australian Geographer</u>, Vol. 9 (1965), pp. 259-268.
- 62. Matley, Ian, "The Marxist Approach to the Geographical Environment," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 56 (1966), pp. 97-111.
- 63. Murphy, Richard E., "Geography: How Adequate Is the Term?" Professional Geographer, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 8-10.
- 64. Platt, Robert S., "Determinism in Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 38 (1948), pp. 126-132.
- 65. Robinson, Arthur H., "On Perks and Pokes," <u>Economic Geography</u>, Vol. 37 (1961), pp. 181-183.
- 66. Schaefer, Fred K., "Exceptionalism in Geography: A Methodological Examination," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 43 (1953), pp. 226-249.



- 67. Spate, O. H. K., "Quantity and Quality in Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 50 (1960), pp. 377-394.
- 68. Spate, O. H. K., "Lord Kelvin Rides Again," <u>Economic Geography</u>, Vol. 36 (1960), Guest Editorial.
- 69. Spoehr, Alexander, "Part and the Whole: Reflections on the Study of a Region," American Anthropologist, Vol. 68 (1966), pp. 629-640.
- 70. Stone, Kirk H., "Has the "GEO" Gone Out of Geography?" Professional Geographer, Vol. 22 (1970), pp. 5-7.
- 71. Tatham, George, "The Rise of Possibilism," in <u>Introduction to Geography</u>:

  Selected Readings, Dohrs and Sommers (eds.), New York: Crowell Co.,

  1967, pp. 130-138.
- 72. Taylor, Peter J., "The Location Variable in Taxonomy," <u>Geographical Analysis</u>, Vol. 1 (1969), pp. 181-195.
- 73. Thoman, Richard S., "Some Comments on The Science of Geography," <u>Professional</u> Geographer, Vol. 17 (1965), pp. 8-10.
- 74. Thompson, Kenneth, "Geography--A Problem in Nomenclature," <u>Professional</u> Geographer, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 4-7.
- 75. Thornthwaite, C. W., "The Task Ahead," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 51 (1961), pp. 345-356.
- 76. Tuan, Yi-Fu, "Geography, Phenomenology, and the Study of Human Nature,"

  <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 15 (1971), pp. 181-192.
- 77. Van Cleef, Eugene, "Confusion or Revolution?" <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 16 (1964), pp. 1-4.
- 78. Van Cleef, Eugene, "Geography as an Earth Science," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 8-11.
- 79. Van Cleef, Eugene, "Whither Geography?" Professional Geographer, Vol. 23 (1971), pp. 344-346.
- 80. Warntz, William, "Global Science and the Tyranny of Space," Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 19 (1967), pp. 7-19.
- 81. Wrobel, Andrzej, "Regional Analysis and the Geographic Concept of Region,"

  Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 8 (1962), pp. 37-42.
- 82. Zelinsky, Wilbur, "Beyond the Exponentials: The Role of Geography in the Great Transition," Economic Geography, Vol. 46 (1970), pp. 498-535.



# Professional Training

- Bengtson, Nels A., "The Geographic Expert," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 13 (1961), pp. 10-13.
- Clark, Andrew, "Praemia Geographiae: The Incidential Rewards of a Professional Career," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 52 (1962), pp. 229-241.
- 3. Harkema, Roll C., "School Geography in Developing Nations," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 71-72.
- Herman, Theodore, "Undergraduate Preparation for a Planning Career," Professional Geographer, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 10-12.
- Hones, Gerald H. and Ryba, Raymond H., "Why Not a Geography of Education?" Journal of Geography, Vol. 71 (1972), pp. 135-139.
- 6. Hudman, Lloyd E., "Geographic Concepts: A Need to be Explicit," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 71 (1971), pp. 520-525.
- 7. Hudson, G. Donald, "Professional Training of the Membership of the Association of American Geographers," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 41 (1951), pp. 97-115.
- 8. Hultquist, Nancy B., "Quantitative Geography Course Offering," Professional Geographer, Vol. 22 (1970), pp. 37-40.
- Johnson, Brian A., "The Use of Theoretical Models in Geography Teaching," Journal of Geography, Vol. 57 (1963), pp. 237-240.
- 10. LaValle, Placido, <u>et al.</u>, "Certain Aspects of the Expansion of Quantitative Methodology in American Geography," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 57 (1967), pp. 423-426.
- 11. McNee, Robert B., "The Structure of Geography and Its Potential Contribution to Generalist Education for Planning," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 18 (1966), pp. 63-68.
- Moriarty, Barry, "Current Status of Cartographic Education in American Colleges and Universities," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 17 (1965), pp. 7-11.
- 13. Pattison, William D., "Geography in the High School," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 52 (1962), pp. 280-284.
- 14. Sauer, Carl, "The Education of a Geographer," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 46 (1956), pp. 287-299.
- 15. Stone, Kirk H., "A Colloquium for Undergraduate Majors in Geography," Professional Geographer, Vol. 15 (1963), pp. 8-11.



- 16. Towler, John, "Geography's Decline--Some Preventive Guideline," <u>Journal of</u> Geography, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 133-135.
- 17. White, Gilbert F., "Introductory Graduate Work for Geographers," <u>Professional</u> Geographer, Vol. 10 (1958), pp. 6-8.
- 18. Wise, Donald A., "Opportunities for Geographers in the Federal Government,"
  Professional Geographer, Vol. 22 (1970), pp. 94-96.
- 19. Zelinsky, Wilbur, "Beyond the Exponentials: The Role of Geography in the Great Transition," Economic Geography, Vol. 46 (1970), pp. 498-535.

## Quantitative Geography

- 1. Berry, Brian J. L., "The Quantitative Bogey-Man," <u>Economic Geography</u>, Vol. 36 (1960), Guest Editorial.
- 2. Berry, Brian J. L., "Interdependency of Spatial Structure and Spatial Behavior: A General Field Theory Formulation," <u>Papers of the Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 21 (1968), pp. 205-228.
- 3. Berry, Brian J. L., "Problems of Data Organization and Analytical Methods in Geography," <u>Journal of the American Statistical Association</u>, Vol. 66 (1971), pp. 510-523.
- Burton, Ian, "The Quantitative Revolution and Theoretical Geography," <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 7 (1963), pp. 151-162.
- 5. Coppock, J. T., "Electronic Data Processing in Geographical Research,"

  Professional Geographer, Vol. 14 (1962), pp. 1-4.
- 6. Curry, Leslie, "Quantitative Geography, 1967," <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 11 (1967), pp. 265-279.
- 7. Dziewonski, Kazimierz, "On Integration of Statistical Cartographic Analysis for Research Purposes," <u>Papers of the Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 15 (1965), pp. 119-129.
- 8. Floyd, Barry N., "The Pleasures Ahead: A Geographic Mediatation," Professional Geographer, Vol. 14 (1962), pp. 1-4.
- 9. Floyd, Barry N., "Quantification--A Geographic Deviation?" Professional Geographer, Vol. 15 (1963), pp. 15-17.
- 10. Garrison, William L., "Spatial Structure of the Economy: I," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 49 (1959), pp. 232-239.
- 11. Hagerstrand, T., "The Computer and the Geographer," <u>Transactions</u>, <u>Institute</u> of <u>British Geographers</u>, Vol. 42 (1967), pp. 1-19.



- 12. Haggett, Peter, "On Geographical Research in a Computer Environment," Geographical Journal, Vol. 135 (1969), pp. 497-507.
- 13. Hultquist, Nancy B., "Quantitative Geography Course Offering," <u>Professional</u> <u>Geographer</u>, Vol. 22 (1970), pp. 37-40.
- 14. LaValle, Placido, et al., "Certain Aspects of the Expansion of Quantitative Methodology in American Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 57 (1967), pp. 423-436.
- 15. Pitts, Forrest R., "Chorology Revisted--Computerwise," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 14 (1962), pp. 8-12.
- 16. Robinson, Arthur H., "On Perks and Pokes," <u>Economic Geography</u>, Vol. 37 (1961), pp. 181-183.
- 17. Sack, Robert David, "Geography, Geometry, and Explanation," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 62 (1972), pp. 61-78.

## Subdisciplines of Geography

٠."

- Berry, Brian J. L., "Recent Studies Concerning the Role of Transportation in the Space Economy," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geo-graphers</u>, Vol. 49 (1959), pp. 328-342.
- 2. Borchert, John R., "Remote Sensors and Geographical Science," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 20 (1968), pp. 371-375.
- 3. Bryan, Kirk, "The Place of Geomorphology in the Geographic Sciences,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 40 (1950),

  pp. 196-208.
- 4. Burton, Ian, "The Quality of the Environment: A Review," Geographical Review, Vol. 58 (1968), pp. 472-481.
- 5. Chisholm, Michael, "Macro- and Micro-Approaches to Urban Systems Research," Geographical Journal, Vol. 138 (1972), pp. 60-63.
- 6. Chojnicki, Zbyszko, "Prediction in Economic Geography," <u>Economic Geography</u>, Vol. 46 (1970), pp. 213-222.
- Dury, George Harry, "Some Recent Views on the Nature, Location, Needs, and Potential of Geomorphology," <u>Professional</u> <u>Geographer</u>, Vol. 24 (1972), pp. 199-202.
- 8. Floyd, Barry N., "On Reversing the Image of a Simplistic Geography: The Task of Socio-Economic Geography (Geonomics)," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 84-90.



\_\_\_\_\_

- 9. Foote, Don Charles and Greer-Wootten, Bryn, "An Approach to System Analysis in Cultural Geography," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 20 (1968), pp. 86-91.
- 10. Golledge, R. G., Brown, L. A., and Williamson, Frank, "Behavioural Approaches in Geographer: An Overview," <u>Australian Geographer</u>, Vol. 12 (1972), pp. 59-79.
- 11. Hartshorne, Richard, "The Functional Approach in Political Geography,"

  <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 40 (1950),
  pp. 95-130.
- 12. Harvey, David, "Theoretical Concepts and the Analysis of Agricultural Land-Use Patterns in Geography," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 56 (1966), pp. 361-374.
- 13. Hones, Gerald H. and Ryba, Raymond H., "Why Not a Geography of Education?" Journal of Geography, Vol. 71 (1972), pp. 135-139.
- 14. Jackson, W. A. Douglas, "Whither Political Geography?" Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 48 (1958), pp. 178-183.
- 15. Jones, Stephen B., "A Unified Field Theory of Political Geography,"

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 43 (1953),
  pp. 111-123.
- 16. Leighly, John, "What Has Happened to Physical Geography?" Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 45 (1955), pp. 309-318.
- 17. Miller, David, "Geography, Physical and Unified," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 17 (1965), pp. 1-4.
- 18. Miller, Vincent, P., Jr., "Some Observations on the Science of Cultural Geography," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 70 (1971), pp. 27-35.
- 19. Robinson, Geoffrey, "A Consideration of the Relations of Geomorphology and Geography," Professional Geographer, Vol. 15 (1963), pp. 13-17.
- 20. Thoman, Richard S., "Recent Methodological Contributions to German Economic Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 48 (1958), pp. 92-96.
- 21. Trewartha, Glenn, "A Case for Population Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 43 (1953), pp. 71-97.
- 22. Ullman, Edward L., "Ecology and Spatial Analysis," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 63 (1973), pp. 272-274.
- 23. Van Cleef, Eugene, "'Things Are Not Always What They Seem' for the Economic Geographer," Economic Geography, Vol. 45 (1969), pp. 41-44.
- 24. Wheeler, James O., "An Overview of Research in Transportation Geography," East Lakes Geographer, Vol. 7 (1971), pp. 3-12.



- 25. Williams, Liewelyn, "Climatology and Geographers," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 13 (1961), pp. 11-15.
- 26. Zakrzewska, Barbara, "Nature of Land Form Geography," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 23 (1971), pp. 351-354.
- 27. Zakrzewska, Barbara, "Trends and Methods in Land Form Geography," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 57 (1967), pp. 128-265.

## Theoretical Approaches

- 1. Angel, Shlomo, and Hyman, Goeffrey M., "Transformations and Geographic Theory," Geographical Analysis, Vol. 4 (1972), pp. 350-372.
- 2. Berry, Brian J. L., "Interdependency of Spatial Structure and Spatial Behavior: A General Field Theory Formulation," <u>Papers of the Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 21 (1968), pp. 205-228.
- 3. Berry, Brian J. L., "Recent Studies Concerning the Role of Transportation in the Space Economy," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 49 (1959), pp. 328-342.
- 4. Bunge, William, "Theoretical Geography," in <u>Introduction to Geography</u>:

  <u>Selected Readings</u>, Dohrs and Sommers (eds.), New York: Crowell Co.,

  1967.
- 5. Burton, Ian, "The Quantitative Revolution and Theoretical Geography," Canadian Geographer, Vol. 7 (1963), pp. 151-162.
- 6. Chorley, Richard J., "Geography and Analogue Theory," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 54 (1964), pp. 127-137.
- 7. Cooper, Sherwin H., "Theoretical Geography, Applied Geography and Planning," Professional Geographer, Vol. 18 (1966), pp. 1-2.
- 8. Dziewonski, Kazimierz, "A New Approach to the Theory and Empirical Analysis of Location," <u>Papers of the Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 16 (1966), pp. 17-26.
- 9. Dziewonski, Kazimierz, "On Integration of Statistical Cartographic Analysis for Research Purposes," <u>Papers of the Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 15 (1965), pp. 119-129.
- Foote, Don Charles and Greer-Wootten, Bryn, "An Approach to System Analysis in Cultural Geography," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 20 (1968), pp. 86-91.
- 11. Gale, Stephen, "Inexactness, Fuzzy Sets, and the Foundations of Behavioral Geography," Geographical Analysis, Vol. 4 (1972), pp. 337-349.



- 12. Garrison, William L., "Spatial Structure of the Economy: I," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 49 (1959), pp. 232-239.
- 13. Harris, Cole, "Theory and Synthesis in Historical Geography," <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 15 (1971), pp. 157-172.
- 14. Harvey, David, "Theoretical Concepts and the Analysis of Agricultural Land-Use Patterns in Geography," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 56 (1966), pp. 361-374.
- 15. Isard, Walter and Tung, Tze Hsiung, "Some Concepts for the Analysis of Spatial Organization: Part I," Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 11 (1963), pp. 17-40.
- 16. Isard, Walter and Tung, Tze Hsiung, "Some Concepts for the Analysis of Spatial Organization: Part II," Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 12 (1964), pp. 1-26.
- 17. Johnson, Brian A., "The Use of Theoretical Models in Geography Teaching," Journal of Geography, Vol. 57 (1963), pp. 237-240.
- 18. Kalesnik, S. Y., "General Geographic Regularities of the Earth," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 54 (1964), pp. 160-164.
- 19. King, Leslie, "A Note on Theory and Reality," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 12 (1960), pp. 4-6.
- 20. Kruczala, Jerzy, "The Attempt to Formulate the Theoretical Base of Regional Science," Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 10 (1963), pp. 47-50.
- 21. Krzysztof, Porwit, "Theoretical and Methodological Questions in the Construction of Comprehensive Models for Regional Planning," <u>Papers of the Regional Science Association</u>, Vol. 22 (1969), pp. 203-214.
- 22. Lukerman, Fred, "The Role of Theory in Geographical Inquiry," <u>Professional</u> Geographer, Vol. 13 (1961), pp. 1-6.
- Olsson, Gunnar and Gale, Stephen, "Spatial Theory and Human Behavior," Papers of the Regional Science Association, Vol. 21 (1968), pp. 229-241.
- 24. Pitts, Forrest R., "Chorology Revisted--Computerwise," <u>Professional Geo-grapher</u>, Vol. 14 (1962), pp. 8-12.
- 25. Sack, Robert David, "Geography, Geometry, and Explanation," <u>Annals of the Association of American Geographers</u>, Vol. 62 (1972), pp. 61-78.
- 26. Sack, Robert David, "A Concept of Physical Space in Geography," <u>Geographical Analysis</u>, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 16-34.
- 27. Schaefer, Fred K., "Exceptionalism in Geography: A Methodological Examination," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 43 (1953), pp. 226-249.



- 28. Wilhanks, Thomas J. and Symanski, Richard, "What is Systems Analysis?" Professional Geographer, Vol. 20 (1968), pp. 81-85.
- 29. Wilson, Alan G., "The Use of Analogies in Geography," Geographical Analysis, Vol. 1 (1969), pp. 225-233.



#### **ADDENDUM**

#### Books

- Abler, Ronald, et al., eds., <u>Human Geography in a Shrinking World</u>, Duxbury Press: North Scituate, Mass., 1975.
- 2. Botting, Douglas. <u>Humboldt and the Cosmos</u>, Michael Joseph: London, 1973.
- Chorley, Richard J., ed., <u>Directions in Geography</u>, Methuen: London, 1973.
- 4. Chorley, Richard J., et al., eds., The History of the Study of Landforms, or the Development of Geomorphology. Volume Two: The Life and Work of William Morris Davis, Methuen: London, 1973.
- 5. Cliff, A. D. and Ord, J. K. <u>Spatial Autocorrelation</u>, Pion Limited: London, 1973.
- Davies, Wayne K. E., ed., <u>The Conceptual Revolution in Geography</u>, Rowman and Littlefield: <u>Totowa</u>, New Jersey, 1972.
- 7. Freeman, T. W. The Geographer's Craft, Methuen: London, 1967.
- 8. Gottman, Jean. <u>The Significance of Territory</u>, University of Virginia Press: Charlottesville, 1973.
- 9. Haggett, Peter. Geography: A Modarn Synthesis, Harper & Row, New York, 1972.
- 10. Martin, Geoffrey J. Ellsworth Huntington: His Life and Thought, Archor Books: Hamden, Conn., 1973.
- Meinig, D. W., ed., <u>On Geography: Selected Writings of Preston James</u>, Syracuse University Press: Syracuse, 1971.
- 12. Mikesell, Marvin W., ed., <u>Geographers Abroad</u>: <u>Essays on the Problems</u>
  <u>and Prospects of Research in Foreign Areas</u>, University of Chicago,
  <u>Research Paper No. 152</u>: Chicago, 1973.
- 13. Rose, Harold M., ed., <u>Perspectives in Geography 2: Geography of the Ghetto, Perceptions, Problems and Alternatives, Northern Illinois University Press: DeKalb, 1972.</u>
- 14. Yeates, Maurice H. An Introduction to Quantitative Analysis in Human Geography, Prentice Hall: Englewood Cliffs, N. J., 1974.



#### Articles

- 1. Andrews, Alice C., "Some Demographic and Geographic Aspects of Community Colleges," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 73 (1974), pp. 10-16.
- Arnett, R. R., and Conacher, A. J., "Drainage Basin Expansion and the Nine Unit Model," <u>Australian Geographer</u>, Vol. 12 (1973), pp. 237-239.
- 3. Beck, A. D., "Geography in the American Community College," Geography, Vol. 59, (1974), pp. 333-335.
- Berman, Mildred, "Sex Discrimination and Geography: The Case of Ellen Churchill Semple," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 26 (1974), pp. 8-11.
- 5. Bird, J. H., "Desiderata for a Definition; or is Geography What Geographers Do?," Area, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 201-203.
- Blake, D. H., and Paijmans, K., "Reconnaissance Mapping of Land Resources in Papua, New Guinea," <u>Australian Geographical Studies</u>, Vol. 11, October (1973), pp. 201-210.
- 7. Blowers, Andrew T., "Relevance, Research, and the Political Process," Area, Vol. 6 (1974), pp. 32-36.
- 8. Bunge, William W., "The Geography," <u>Professional Geographer</u>, Vol. 25 (1973), pp. 331-337.
- 9. Bunge, William W., "The Geography of Human Survival," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 63 (1973), pp. 275-295.
- 10. Bunge, William W., "Regions Are Sort of Unique," Area, Vol. 6 (1974), pp. 92-99.
- 11. Bunge, William W., "Spatial Prediction," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 63 (1973), pp. 566-568.
- 12. Browning, Clyde E., "The Question, 'But Is It Geography?' Revisited Or Are There Criteria for Establishing the Geographic Content of Topics?," <a href="Professional Geographer">Professional Geographer</a>, Vol. 26 (1974), pp. 137-139.
- 13. Clark, David, "Normality, Transformation, and the Principal Components Solution: An Empirical Note," Area, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 110-113.



- Conway, Dennis, and Haynes, Kingsley E., "A Geographical Factor Analysis Model: Some Transatlantic Reflections," <u>Area</u>, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 106-109.
- Davidson, C. F., "The Effectiveness of Simulation Games in Geography Teaching," <u>New Zealand Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 55 (1973), pp. 10-15.
- 16. Edwards, K. C., "Sixty Years After Herbertson: The Advance of Geography as a Spatial Science," <u>Geography</u>, Vol. 59 (1974), pp. 1-9.
- 17. Eyre, S. R., "The Spatial Encumbrance," <u>Area</u>, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 320-324.
- 18. Fisher, R. M., "William Crashawe and the Middle Temple Globes," Geographical Journal, Vol. 104 (1974), pp. 105-112.
- 19. Fleming, Douglas K., "The Regionalizing Ritual," <u>Scottish Geographical Magazine</u>, Vol. 89, pp. 196-207.
- 20. Forster, C. A., "Monte Carlo Simulation as a Teaching Aid in Urban Geography: Evaluation of an Example," Geography, Vol. 58, (1973), pp. 13-28.
- 21. Guelke, Leonard, "An Idealist Alternative in Human Geography," .

  Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 64 (1974),
  pp. 193-202.
- 22. Gunn, Colin D., "The Non-Western Novel as a Geography Text," Journal of Geography, Vol. 73 (1974), pp. 27-35.
- 23. Hanley, Wayne S., "Invercargill in the 1870's. The Application of an Historical Model," <u>New Zealand Geographer</u>, Vol. 30 (1974), pp. 66-74.
- 24. Hare, F. Kenneth, and Wood, David, "George Harold Michie,"

  <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 17 (1973), pp. 184-185.
- 25. Harley, J. B., "Change in Historical Geography: A Qualitative Impression of Quantitative Methods," Area, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 69-74.
- 26. Harris, C., "Theory and Synthesis in Historical Geography,"

  <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 15 (1971), pp. 157-172.
- 27. Harvey, David, "Population, Resources, and the Ideology of Science," Economic Geography, Vol. 50 (1974), pp. 256-277.
- 28. Holcomb, Briavel, "Geography in the Competitive Academic Market-place," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 73 (1974), pp. 40-43.

.. .. . . . . . . . . . .



- 29. Holtgrieve, Donald G., "Frederick Jackson Turner as a Regionalist," Professional Geographer, Vol. 26 (1974), pp. 159-165.
- 30. Isachenko, A. G., "On the Study of the History of Geographical Ideas (A Rebuttal)," <u>Soviet Geography: Review and Translation</u>, Vol. 15 (1974), pp. 367-372.
- 31. James, Preston E., "Geographic Concepts and World Crises," <u>Journal</u> of Geography, Vol. 74 (1975), pp. 8-15.
- Johnston, R. J., "On Fractions of Distance and Regression Coefficients," <u>Area</u>, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 187-191.
- 33. Jones, G. W., "Children's Choice of Geography," <u>Geography</u>, Vol. 59 (1974), pp. 351-354.
- 34. Kermea, T., "Human Geography Research and Postgraduate Training in Further Education: the Role of the SSRC," <u>Area</u>, Vol. 6 (1974), pp. 24-28.
- 35. Kilchenman, A., "Statistical-Analytical Methods in Theoretical Regional Geography," Geoforum, (1971), pp. 39-53.
- 36. Kirk, William, "Historical Geography and the Concept of the Behavioural Environment," Indian Geographical Society: Silver Jubilee Souvenir Volume, 1952, pp. 152-160. Madras.
- 37. Kirk, William, "Problems of Geography," Geography, Vol. 48 (1963), pp. 357-371.
- 38. Kirkpatrick, J. B., "The Use of Differential Systematics in Geographical Research," Area, Vol. 6 (1974), pp. 52-53.
- Lee, David, "Existentialism in Geographic Education," Journal of Geography, Vol. 73 (1973), pp. 13-19.
- 40. Lewis, E. W., "The Development of Geography in the Polytechnics of England and Wales," <u>Geographical Journal</u>, Vol. 139 (1973), pp. 509-515.
- Lowenthal, David, "Past Time, Present Place: Landscape and Memory," <u>Geographical Review</u>, Vol. 65 (1975), pp. 1-36.
- 42. Morgan, W. B., "The Doctorine of the Rings," Geography, Vol. 58, (1973), pp. 301-312.
- 43. Nijim, Basheer K., "Geographic Data and Concepts: An Introductory Exercise," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 73, (1974), pp. 44-49.
- 44. Openshaw, S., "GISP: Towards a Geographic Information System," Area, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 25-27.



- 45. Pattison, William, "The Four Traditions of Geography," <u>Journal</u> of Geography, Vol. 63, (1964), pp. 211-216.
- 46. Pemberton, Dixie A., et al., "Implications of Methodology in Training Teachers of Geography: A Micro Lab Session Using a Process Model," <u>Journal of Geography</u>, Vol. 73 (1974), pp. 26-38.
- 47. Peters, Michael, "Retention Differences Between Reception and Discovery Learning Approaches - A Tentative Investigation," New Zealand Journal of Geography, Vol. 56, April, 1974, pp. 19-24.
- 48. Pike, Richard J., "Why Not an Extraterrestrial Geography," Professional Geography, Vol. 26, (1974), pp. 258-261.
- 49. Pritchard, G., "Group and Quiz Techniques in Teaching Geography," Geography, Vol. 59 (1974), pp. 355-359.
- 50. Rees, Ronald, "Geography and Landscape Painting: An Introduction to a Neglected Field," <u>Scottish Geographical Magazine</u>, Vol. 89, (1973), pp. 147-157.
- 51. Relph, E., "An Inquiry into the Relations Between Phenomenology and Geography," <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 14 (1970), pp. 193-201.
- 52. Relph, Edward, "Graduate Education in Geography: A Critique and a Proposal," Professional Geographer, Vol. 26 (1974), pp. 4-7.
- 53. Report of the Meeting of the Urban History Group of the Economic History Society, "Methodological Overlap," Area, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 229-230.
- 54. Richards, Paul, "Kant's Geography and Mental Maps," <u>Transactions</u>, I.B.G., Vol. 61 (1974), pp. 1-16.
- 55. Robinson, C. J., "Scottish Geographers: The First Hundred Years,"
  Scottish Geographical Magazine, Vol. 89 (1973), pp. 5-18.
- 56. Sack, Robert David, "Chorology and Spatial Analysis," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 64 (1974), pp. 439-452.
- 57. Sack, Robert D., "The Spatial Separatist Theme in Geography," Economic Geography, Vol. 50 (1974), pp. 1-19.
- 58. Sauer, Carl O., "The Fourth Dimension of Geography," Annals of the Associations of American Geographers, Vol. 64 (1974), pp. 189-192.
- 59. Saushkin, Yu G., "Study of the History of Geographical Ideas,"

  <u>Soviet Geography: Review and Translation</u>, Vol. 15 (1974), pp. 42-49.



- 60. Shepperson, George, "David Livingston 1813-1873: A Centenary Assessment," Geographical Journal, Vol. 139 (1973), pp. 204-219.
- 61. Siddle, D. J., "David Livingston: A Mid-Victorian Field Scientist," <u>Geographical Journal</u>, Vol. 140 (1974), pp. 72-79.
- 62. Sochava, V. B., "A New Work on Theoretical Geography," <u>Soviet Geography: Review and Translation</u>, Vol. 15 (1974), pp. 311-319.
- 63. Study Group in Quantitative Methods, "Whither Spatial Analysis?," Area, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 312-315.
- 64. Taaffe, Edward, "The Spatial View in Context," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 64 (1974), pp. 1-16.
- 65. Tietze, Wolf, "A New Orientation for Economic Geography?," Geoforum, Vol. 5 (1973), p. 3.
- 66. Till, R., "The Use of Linear Regression in Geography," Area, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 303-308.
- 67. Tinkler, K. J., "Uniqueness in Geographical Interactions," Area, Vol. 3, (1969), pp. 27-30.
- 68. Tuan, Yi-Fu, "Ambiguity in Attitudes Toward Environment," Annals of the Association of American Geographers, Vol. 63 (1973), pp. 411-423.
- 69. Uhlig, H., "Organization and System of Geography," Geoforum, (1971), pp. 7-38.
- 70. Walmsley, D. J., "Positivism and Phenomenology in Human Geography,"

  <u>Canadian Geographer</u>, Vol. 18 (1974), pp. 95-107.
- 71. Watson, J. Wreford, "Image Geography: The Myth of America in the American Scene," <u>Advancement of Science</u>, Vol. 27 (1970), pp. 71-79.
- 72. White, Gavin, "David Livingston in Search of Beauty," Scottish Geographical Magazine, Vol. 89 (1973), pp. 158-161.
- 73. Wilcork, A. A., "The English Strabo: The Geographical Publications of John Pinkerton," <u>Transactions, I.B.G.</u>, Vol. 61 (1974), pp. 35-45.
- 74. Wileman, D., "Karl Baer and the Development of Russian Geography," Geographical Journal, Vol. 139 (1973), pp. 116-119.
- 75. Wise, M. J., "Environmental Studies: Geographical Objectives," Geography, Vol. 58 (1973), pp. 293-300.



- 76. Wright, John, "Air Photographs for Small Expeditions," Geographical Journal, Vol. 139 (1973), pp. 311-322.
- 77. Wrigley, Neil, "The Use of Percentages in Geographical Research," Area, Vol. 5 (1973), pp. 183-186.

